ST OF CA-REHABILITATION-CAL2
Moderator: Michelle Reynolds

04-04-18/3:30 pm CT
Confirmation # 7194055

Page 1

ST OF CA-REHABILITATION-CAL2
Moderator: Michelle Reynolds
April 4, 2018
3:30 pm CT

Coordinator:
Welcome and thank you for standing by.  At this time all participants are in a listen only mode until the question and answer session of today’s conference.  At that time, you may press star 1 on your phone to ask a question.  I would like to inform all parties that today’s conference is being recorded.  If you have any objections, you may disconnect at this time.  I would now like to turn the conference over to Mr. Jay Harris.  Thank you.  You may begin. 
Jay Harris:
Well thank you everybody for joining us today.  My name is Jay Harris.  I’m the program manager for the Older Individuals Who are Blind program and one of the team members who helped work on the grant solicitation manual that we’re here to talk about today.  So thank you so much for joining us and giving us your time this afternoon.  I’m going to go ahead and turn our time over to our director, Joe Xavier.  
Joe Xavier:
Yes, thank you Jay.  Good morning or good afternoon to everybody around the state.  Let me start by thanking you for making the time to join us and to participate in this forum.  I certainly want to acknowledge our project team that has been doing a lot of work on the grant solicitation manual.  And many of you who are on this call throughout the state are our partners and you’re integral to delivering the programs and services that we provide throughout the state.  So thank you for that partnership and for the work that you are doing.  

Here in central office we have a roomful of executives and program staff and senior managers from around the various sections that are wanting to hear firsthand from you, on today’s forum.  So public forums for us are something that are very important, because they continue to advance our commitment to transparency.  They continue to ensure that we have an opportunity to hear from our community; it allows us to share and provide information to you; and for you to inform and participate in our decision making and then advancing our programs and services. 

It’s also an opportunity for us to hear directly from each other.  So while you are offering any comments, the rest of the community gets to hear those comments and I think that’s an important part of transparency.  So I wanted to set a little bit of context for today’s call and I’m going to start with just drawing your attention to our vision and our mission of employment and independence and equality for all Californians with disabilities.  


Grants are one of the vehicles that we use to deliver our programs and deliver our services.  And grants can include independent living centers, older individuals who are blind, traumatic brain injury and certainly your Assistive Technology (AT) program.  Now the grants can be in a whole range of different areas, including identifying systems that need to be changed to be more inclusive of individuals with disabilities, as well as ensuring that individuals with disabilities are reconnected and connected with society. 

Our values of pursuit of excellence through continuous improvement, is one of the reasons that we’re having this forum, one of the reasons that we have put the grant solicitation manual out for public comment, so that we have an opportunity to hear from you on how we can strengthen that.  And it’s also ensuring - the other value that we have is ensuring that our work, our decisions are informed by our community.  

So today we want to share with you this competitive solicitation grants manual and we want to ensure that the administration of this process is meeting the community’s needs, is meeting the needs of the population that are intended to be served by the various grants.  And we want to be sure that we hear from you on how we can improve this grant solicitation process.  So to get into some of the more detail about the grants solicitation manual itself, I’m going to turn this over to Tina Watson, who is our executive over our financial management branch.  So Tina, I’m turning it over to you. 
Tina Watson:
Thank you Joe.  I will provide some background information on the grant solicitation manual.  The Department of Rehabilitation has been working on finalizing its grant solicitation manual.  The grant solicitation manual pertains to grant solicitations under our Independent Living, Older Individuals Who are Blind, Assistive Technology and Traumatic Brain Injury programs.  This manual will be also utilized for any other grant opportunities the department may have in the future.  


We’re happy to share this draft with all of you as our partners and look forward to your input on the draft that we’ve presented to you.  To give you a little background, we have formed a workgroup to revise our grant solicitation manual.  We brought people together from across the organization to work on this.  And this included staff from our independent living and community access division, staff from our Older Individuals Who are Blind program, contracts and procurement staff and the Office of Legal Affairs.  

What is the grant solicitation manual?  The grant solicitation manual serves as a guide that will describe the steps for the competitive solicitation process for grant programs administered through the Department of Rehabilitation.  It will be used as a reference document by staff, during the request for application process.  The grant solicitation manual of course, is not intended to replace any state or federal laws or regulation.  


The purpose of the grant solicitation manual is to provide structure, consistency and guidance to the DOR staff, during the competitive solicitation process for distributing grant funds, using the request for application process, to ensure the competitive solicitation process is responsive to the needs of the public, our grant recipients and those who receive services under the grants.  The draft grant solicitation manual has been posted for public input and is subject to change before it is finalized. 


And the input that we receive from you will also be considered before we finalize the grant solicitation manual.  We anticipate publication of the grant solicitation - the final grant solicitation manual after June 1, 2018.  At that time we will post it on the DOR internet for reference by the public.  And also to provide transparency on the grant solicitation process.  There will be time towards the end of this call, to answer any general clarifying questions regarding the stakeholder feedback process. 


As there are people on this call from several programs and communities and in the interest of time, if you have any questions about a specific grant or request for application, we ask that you please contact the appropriate DOR program directly.  I’d now like to turn this over to Elena Gomez, Deputy Director of Specialized Services Division, to provide additional background and information on providing feedback on the grant solicitation manual.  
Elena Gomez:
Well thank you Tina.  And hello everyone.  I hope everyone is having a good afternoon.  So as Tina mentioned, I’m going to be talking about the process for providing feedback on the grant solicitation manual.  As both Joe and Tina shared earlier, the Department, you know, really tries to maintain the transparency of this (internal) activity, including the grant solicitation process.  And we really very much would appreciate receiving your thoughts on the draft solicitation manual before it’s finalized. 

As you may be aware and Joe touched on this earlier, a core value of ours is to ensure that our decisions and actions are informed by interested individuals and groups.  So we want to learn from you as an interested individual or an interested group, on whether the draft grant solicitation manual is clear or if there are areas that should be further clarified, revised, added or changed.  Does it address all of the necessary topics?  

And more importantly, we want to know if there’s something that we haven’t considered or should have considered.  So we’re asking for you to provide your feedback through a tool that we’re using, the Survey Monkey.  And the link to the SurveyMonkey was in the notice for this draft - for this public forum.  And the notice also contained a link to our draft grant solicitation manual.  And if you don’t have that notice of the - for this public forum, that’s okay.  You could find the draft grant solicitation manual on the DOR Web site at http://DOR.CA.gov/Public/Grants.html.  So I’m going to repeat it again.  


It’s a rather lengthy Web site address.  Again, that address is http://DOR.CA.gov/Public/Grants.html.  And we also have a copy of the public notice for this forum, on this Web site page, which you can open in order to link to the SurveyMonkey.  I also want to share that SurveyMonkey is accessible.  And that’s the very first question that you see when you click onto the SurveyMonkey, is whether or not you see a screen reader, in order to help facilitate the process of completing the survey. 

Also, when you open the SurveyMonkey and as you go through the process, you will see that there are sections that we’re really interested in getting your feedback on.  And some of these sections are, you know, the development of the request for application or RFA, and that covers how we develop the RFA who is involved in developing the required components of the RFA, such as the application submission process, the administrative review and the financial review. 

Another section that we’re asking you to take a close look at, is how we engage with Stakeholders, including the (bidder)’s conference; how we answer questions that receive; how we make addendums; and other changes to the RFA.  The third is how we select the evaluation panel and the qualifications for the evaluation panel members.  

The next section that we’re asking for your feedback on is the scoring of the RFA, including the scoring benchmarks that are used by the evaluation panel.  Another area is the appeals process.  Does it need to be clarified further; is it clear?  And the last section of interest to us is how confidentiality, bias and conflicts of interest, are addressed in the manual, in order to insure a fair and transparent RFA process.  


Of course we recognize that there may be other sections of the manual that you may wish to comment on and of course we welcome them.  And for those other areas that are not specifically called out on the survey, there’s a section that is titled other in the SurveyMonkey, where you can provide your feedback.  We’re asking for your feedback on the draft manual to the SurveyMonkey.  And the SurveyMonkey will remain available through Wednesday of next week, April 11, 2018.  Again, it will remain open through Wednesday of next week, April 11th.  

The Department is not planning to respond to individual feedback received through SurveyMonkey.  But I just wanted to assure you that all feedback will be careful considered in finalizing the manual.  We also want to share that we provided a copy of the draft manual to the California State Auditors and we expect to potentially receive feedback from them as well.  


As Tina mentioned earlier, the Department anticipates having the final grant solicitation manual ready after June 1st of this year, which we will post to our public Web site and they will be open for viewing by everyone.  But again, you know, we appreciate your review and we want your feedback before the grant solicitation manual is finalized.  


So with that I just want to thank you for your time and I’m going to stop now and turn it over to Jay Harris to facilitate the question and answer portion of this call. 

Jay Harris:
Great.  Thank you Elena.  Thank you Joe, Tina and Elena for helping frame the input process and helping explain about the grant solicitation manual and its purpose.  I want to also notify people on the telephone, if you’re interested in a transcript of the conference call that will be available and posted on our Web site, in seven to ten days.  So if you’re interested in that you can reach out to us or check back at our Web site for that transcript.  


So and now I’m going to go ahead and turn it over to our operator, to explain the question and answer queuing.  

Coordinator:
Thank you.  If you would like to ask a question at this time, please press star 1, unmute your phone and record your name clearly.  If you need to withdraw your question, press star 2.  Again, to ask a question, please press star 1.  It will take a few moments for questions to come through.  Please standby.  Our first question comes from (Thomas Gregory).  Your line is open. 
(Thomas Gregory):
Hi.  Thanks.  I had two quick questions and a quick comment.  My one question is I’ve always understood that grants are different than contracts and the requests for application are different than request for proposals, although I’ve never understood what those differences are.  I know that this GSM pertains to grants and RFAs.  My question is does it also pertain to contracts and RFPs?  That was the first question.  


The second question is page 5 of the draft says that the solicitation process should be fair and transparent to all stakeholders including the public and interested parties.  My question is does that transparency extend to knowing who - extend to letting applicants know who their competition is; who their fellow applicants are?  That was question 2.  


And my comment is, on page 10 they talk about emailed electronic submissions being acceptable in addition to flash drives.  And I just wanted to commend that change.  It’s much better to be able to email in electronic copies, than submit a flash drive for a number of reasons.  Thank you.  

(Cynthia Robinson):
Hi.  This is (Cynthia Robinson) from contracts and procurement.  The GSM only pertains to the grants contracts.  And RFPs are governed through DGS.  So GSM is only for grants.  
(Thomas Gregory):
Thank you. 

Coordinator:
Our next question comes from (Rudy Contreras).  Your line is open. 

(Rudy Contreras):
Yes.  So my question is while I understand that the feedback given on SurveyMonkey, you said you would review all of it, but not individualize any responses to the feedback we give.  So are we then to just wait until the finalized draft comes out without knowing whether any of our feedback was addressed?  


And also, when I see in the criteria for selecting a panel, it says about a solicitation and invitation, but does that mean the solicitation is posted on the DOR Web site or is this just individualized solicitations from colleagues or organizations which we’ve worked with in the past?  That’s it.  

Julie Sanchez:
This is Julie Sanchez.  The criteria for the evaluation panel - it may be posted online or each program may determine whether or not they want to do individual invitations depending on what they’re soliciting for at the time.  So it could be either/or, or it could be both, depending on the program.  

(Rudy Contreras):
So then there wouldn’t be a standard? 

Jay Harris:
(Rudy), this is Jay Harris with the Older Individuals Who are Blind program.  And the manual included options so that programs could best choose or solicit panels - panel evaluation members based on the program need.  Every program is different and has different things to consider.  So the manual gives us the opportunity to go about the process in the way that’s best for the individual program. 
(Rudy Contreras):
Okay.  And that - I do have one follow up where what action can the grant review committee take?  It says that it can recommend or require?  What does a recommendation mean?  Does that mean it’s just recommended, it doesn’t have to be required or followed?  Or is it okay, you know, should it not include recommendations and just have requirements, when you actually have a review committee?  

Anisha Asher:
Hi (Rudy).  This is Anisha from the Office of Legal Affairs.  That is a more fact specific question that’s going to be something that every individual grant review committee will analyze for themselves, based on the subject matter of the appeal and how they choose to analyze it.  

(Rudy Contreras):
And then will the committee be made of up experts as the original reviewers, which is the requirement for the reviewers?  Or will the review committee just be individuals that are more familiar with policy?  

Kelly Hargreaves:
You know, let me answer that.  This is Kelly Hargreaves.  The grant review committee is comprised of people who were not the original scorers.  Because the whole purpose of it is to give those who apply for a grant another opportunity to have an assessment of their score or whatever they feel might not have been done appropriately, by the grant committee, by the original panel members. 

(Rudy Contreras):
Yes, but your original panel is made up of experts.  So would the review committee also be experts? 

Kelly Hargreaves:
We absolutely would make sure that they are folks who are appropriate for reviewing the whole process.  So it depends.  Sometimes people have issues about the process itself, in which case you wouldn’t need a subject matter expert.  If the actual appeal was based upon the weight or the scoring of something that is more appropriate for an expert, then I would appoint somebody to be an advisor or be a member of the committee that could best address that.  
(Rudy Contreras):
That’s perfect.  And then also the confidentiality - that area is a little vague to me, because it says that the evaluation process wouldn’t be discussed with the applicants or the members, but does that also include members of other state departments or entities, or it just stays confidential within the Department of Rehab?  Or are other departments of entities sharing any of this information and then it could then be disclosed by them, which - because they abide by different policies?  

Anisha Asher:
(Rudy), this is Anisha again, from the Office of Legal Affairs.  The confidentiality policy is designed to apply during the process of the Department evaluating all of the applications.  So it’s for our staff and for any of our potential evaluators and actual evaluators, to keep the information confidential throughout our evaluation and scoring process.  

Afterwards, of course, most of the documents, if not all of them, of this process, are public record and they can be disclosed due to the Public Records Act.  But it’s just for, you know, to preserve the integrity of the process, we do ask that everybody keep it confidential while we’re scoring.  

(Rudy Contreras):
Okay.  And then my last area was the reviewing evaluator information.  So when you’re reviewing the information you obviously want the potential evaluator to not have a financial connection.  But would it be possible to possibly include directly or indirectly having a possible financial gain?  Because I think they’re both two very different ways to actually gain anything financially and have any breach within the information.  
Jay Harris:
(Rudy), this is Jay and we have received some feedback on this area and so I think we’re going to need to look at the language that’s there, just to make sure that the differences between say direct or indirect are a little more clear, because I think the draft language right now, may be able to be a little bit tightened up so that it’s - we’re clear on how those relationships are or exist.  
(Rudy Contreras):
Right.  Because I also saw in the evaluator certification and other documentation, it says, you know, the forms will be signed and collected by the program staff before the evaluators are empaneled. But what if an evaluator merely just signs the form after they made their submission, but because they date it to when it was originally due, there’s no real contractor.  So maybe having like an email verification with the time stamp on it, so you know that the documentation was in fact submitted prior to the (assemblement) of that panel?  
Kelly Hargreaves:
(Rudy), This is Kelly Hargreaves.  We did look into that in that we did have some weaknesses in our process in terms of just memorializing what was verbally confirmed earlier.  And so we are taking steps now to make sure that not only that information is submitted and considered before the actual appointment, but that there’s a continual obligation to report if there’s any change in financial situations.  

As to the indirect benefit, you know, I’m hearing Jay say there might be some room for improvement, but I know that we did address in the handbook the indirect, insofar as a person who has - who gets income from a spouse or somebody in their household, is covered by that Form 700.  Anisha, did you want to add anything along those lines, as to how that indirect cost is captured exactly as (Rudy) is anticipating it should be?  

Anisha Asher:
Sure.  So (Rudy), this is Anisha again.  What we did with the - regarding the financial connection, is we wanted to look at not only if the individual could gain some sort of a benefit, you know, some sort of a financial benefit such as, you know, their salary or - if they’re contractor or, you know, or maybe a paid board member with an organization.  We looked at that, but we also looked at whether a family member has some sort of a financial relationship with an applicant organization, so such as maybe a spouse being an employee or a contractor or even a, you know, a recipient of services in some way, where they could be financial enriched. 

We looked at that as well, and we wanted to make sure that when we were selecting an evaluator, we were picking someone who really did have - who really did have a separation not only with themselves, but with any of their spouses or their relatives from the organization.  

(Rudy Contreras):
Thank you.  I really would like to applaud all of you and the efforts you’ve made on this manual.  It is very, very good.  And having this open forum I think, will make it even better.  And I love the addition of having whether an evaluator is biased or having the appearance of bias, because I think that also is meaningful in this process.  

Jay Harris:
Thank you (Rudy). 
Coordinator:
Our next question comes from (Christina Johnston).  Your line is open.  

(Christina Johnston):
Hi.  I would just like to receive clarification on if workability for our programs will need to have an RFA. 

(Kathy Marist-Moore):
So this is (Kathy Marist-Moore).  Thank you for calling in.  No, our workability for programs and all of our cooperative programs, our third party cooperative agreements, are not developed in response to RFAs.  They are developed separately.  
(Christina Johnston):
Perfect. Thank you.  

Coordinator:
The next question comes from (Thomas Gregory).  Your line is open.  
(Thomas Gregory):
Thank you.  Page 5 of the draft says that the solicitation process should be fair and transparent to all stakeholders including the public and interested parties.  My question is does that transparency extend to allowing applicants to know who their competition is, namely the other applicants?  

Victor Duron:
Hi (Thomas).  This is Victor Duron with the DOR.  So there is some information that we don’t necessarily know until later on in the RFA process, right?  So for example, we won’t know who has applied for an RFA until the applications are actually received.  And then there’s a window of time where some of the information is confidential, to protect the integrity of the process.  However, as Anisha pointed out earlier, after the competition period ends, most of the documents involved in the process, become public record and available through a Public Records Act request. 
(Thomas Gregory):
Okay.  Thank you.  

Coordinator:
As a reminder, you can press star 1 on your phone and record your name if you have a question.  Our next question comes from (Meredith Navarro).  Your line is open.  (Meredith), we’re not able to hear you in conference.  Please check the mute feature on your phone. 

(Lilibeth Navarro):
Hello?  It’s (Lilibeth Navarro).  

Coordinator:
Thank you (Lilibeth).  You may ask your question.  

(Lilibeth Navarro):
Yes.  Thank you for the efforts you’ve put into this.  And I think I will also write you feedback in a more orderly fashion, our suggestions.  But I think it would be helpful also, to describe a little bit the granting process that comes before this.  Because I know that as a conduit of federal funding, the state has leverage into whether to put this part of money in a grant or, you know, use it somewhere else.  

So when you put out a grant let’s say a TBI grant or a youth grant or some other grant, I’m interested to know if you guys look at all your ILCs and decide which of them already have a youth grant, a TBI grant and whatever grant, and which do not have.  Because that’s very relevant to the goal of providing the same services to all the areas needing services.  


So when little ILCs no matter how long they’ve been in business, still do not have let’s say a youth grant, that some thoughtfulness is brought to bear, so that it’s not - so you give them the opportunity to go get a grant, but you don’t take it against them, the lack of history or experience in providing youth services because there was no apparent program.  

Because how do we speak of experience which qualifies us to a grant, if we are repeatedly denied the grant?  TBI - how do we even take a stab at TBI services if we’re always denied the grant?  In other words, we need a process that stabilizes or equalizes the opportunity for ILCs to mimic the services - not mimic, but to produce the same services that big ILCs have.  

Big ILCs tend to have more money and the grant writers can produce very professional work, which the little ILCs with no funds for grant writing, cannot produce.  So in light of that, what - how - a dialog is important to describe that process; the pre-granting process.  And then also the myths and facts about the granting process.  

I’ll give you an example.  There were certain grants that there was a tacit agreement that there was - that they were meant for the bigger organizations that would do statewide organizing.  And so the little ILCs that did not know the history and applied for these grants, you know, did not know about that.  So they were just - and us being an example, we were deemed as not qualified, because we did not have the statewide capability to provide the services.  

In other words, if that was explained very well, in the granting process or even in the RFP, we would not have wasted the effort at taking a stab at this huge grant.  So I think it’s important that the kind of grant is identified very clearly.  Is it a startup youth grant or is it a continuing youth grant?  Because when we start services in our ILCs, I think all of us have an interest in watching that project grow.  Because when that project grows it grows and helps develop our people 


A case in point - Assisted Technology - we asked for an AT grant when we were starting.  It’s now serving a lot of people and it really helps that we have the continuing funding to do that.  So money to cultivate and grow the project is good.  Startups…
((Crosstalk))
(Lilibeth Navarro):
…have to be…

Joe Xavier:
(Lilibeth)?  

(Lilibeth Navarro):
…identified…

Woman:
(Lilibeth)?  

Joe Xavier:
(Lilibeth), this is Joe. 

(Lilibeth Navarro):
Yes?  

Joe Xavier:
Hey (Lilibeth), you’re making a lot of really - I think really very valuable and very important points and I appreciate - you started your conversation by saying that you’re going to send that in.  And I really would invite you to do so.  Some of what you were bringing up is very much related to how the state plan for independent living is done, and we certainly want to bring those comments to that forum because I think that that is the place for them to be addressed.  

So if you have something that is specific to the solicitation process of this, of course we want to hear that.  But I would invite you to put - send in your written request with what you were talking about, so we can move that to the right forum for that conversation.  

(Lilibeth Navarro):
Okay.  I will.  
Joe Xavier:
Thank you (Lilibeth).  I very much appreciate that.  

Coordinator:
Thank you.  And again, as a reminder, to ask a question at this time, you can press star 1 on your phone and record your name when prompted.  Our next question will come from (Anna Acton).  Your line is open. 
(Anna Acton):
Thank you for the opportunity to provide feedback.  Can you guys hear me?  
Coordinator:
Yes, we can.

Woman:
Yes, we can hear you.  

(Anna Acton):
Okay.  So I just wanted to provide some feedback on the evaluation panel, the composition of the evaluation panel.  Looking to the draft, I appreciate that you guys are including the potential - really emphasizing subject matter experts and allowing for the opportunity for outside partners to be a part of the evaluation process.  I feel like that is really critical, especially with some of the grants that are administered through the (ILATS) section at DOR.  


These are often programs that don’t for example, another state worker would not necessarily understand pieces such as independent living philosophies such as community organizing and systems change, traumatic brain injury, youth and other types of programs that are granted through (ILATS). 

If you could imagine an interview panel that did not have that subject matter experts or outside community members and stakeholders, you would have a panel of, you know, potentially have a panel of evaluators who don’t understand the essence of the programs, the philosophy and what we’re trying to do as a network.  So I just want to highly encourage those pieces to remain in there.  


I appreciate your thoughtfulness with this manual and again, encouraging those outside partners and subject matter experts.  Thank you very much.  
Man:
Thanks (Anna).  

Coordinator:
We’re showing no further questions at this time.  But again, as a reminder, you can press star 1 on your phone and record your name if you have a question.  One moment please for any additional questions.  It appears we do have a question coming in.  One moment please.  We do have a follow up question from (Rudy Contreras).  Your line is open. 
(Rudy Contreras):
Yes.  My follow up question was under the evaluation panel composition, where the RFA should have a minimum of two members.  Why was a two member - rather than a three, because a three could break a tie.  Where if you have a two, you know, a 50/50 split and then that creates more problems where you may have to then get another panel.  

Elena Gomez:
Hi (Rudy).  This is Elena Gomez with the Specialized Services Division.  Thank you for brining that up.  In the grant solicitation manual, in the draft grant solicitation manual we said that was the minimum, but actually our preference is to have at least three or more.  So I just wanted to clarify that.  But if you have any recommendations on how we can further clarify that to avoid any misinterpretation or confusion, we certainly welcome your feedback through the SurveyMonkey.  
(Rudy Contreras):
Okay.  So a minimum of three and then just preferably five, because I think that number five was used elsewhere in the survey, I mean in the draft.  

Coordinator:
And again, to ask a question at this time, please press star 1 on your phone and record your name when prompted.  One moment please.  We do have an additional question from (Thomas Gregory).  Your line is open. 
(Thomas Gregory):
Hi.  Not a question.  I just wanted to speak to the previous questioner and I wanted to note that having an odd or even number of panel members might not be that relevant because they don’t actually vote on who wins or who doesn’t win.  They give a score.  And in the case of a tie score, the manual - the draft manual does outline a process for breaking ties.  So I just wanted to give that input.  

Jay Harris:
Thank you.

Woman:
Thank you.  

Coordinator:
And we are showing no further questions at this time. 
Jay Harris:
Thank you everybody.  I just want to thank everybody again for joining and giving us your time this afternoon.  This process is really important to us and we really appreciate the feedback we’ve gotten today, through the phone call.  And we know we have some SurveyMonkey responses already.  We’re excited to see that.  but I just want to encourage folks, really, you know, take the opportunity if you can, to submit your input through that SurveyMonkey link.  

Again, you can go to the DOR’s contracts and procurement Web site.  The SurveyMonkey link is there, the public notice that kind of covers all the things we talked about today, as well a draft grant solicitation manual are all posted there, on that Web site.  Or you can reach out to any of the programs that are giving grants.  We can all direct you where to go on our Web site or give you a copy of anything you may need.  So thank you again.  Please participate.  We want to hear from you, so that as we work on finalizing this, we can make it the best product we can.  Thank you again. 

Coordinator:
That does conclude today’s conference.  Thank you for your participation.  You may disconnect at this time.  
END

